Tue 11/29/2016 3:58 PM

FILED

DEC 01 2016 WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

PETITION FOR REVIEW
WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

93873.3

ON APPEAL FROM COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON APPEAL NO. 48027-1-II Issued: October 25th, 2015

Angela K. Scoutten kna Schreiner

Appellant/Petitioner,

V.

Michael J. Scoutten

Respondent

Angela K. Scoutten kna Schreiner Petitioner, Pro Se 1505 Grand Loop Way #602 Tacoma WA 98407

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. The Court of Appeals Division II erred in upholding the trial court's ruling that father had rebutted the Presumption in Favor of Relocation, Claimed Error #14 in Appellant's Brief. The trial court failed to apply the Presumption at the conclusion of trial and opted to apply a "best interest of the child" standard instead. This decision is in conflict with *Marriage* of *McNaught*, No. 72343-0-1, 2015 Wash. App. LEXIS 1938 (Aug. 17, 2015), *In Re Marriage* of *Rostrom*, 184 Wn. App. 744, 339 P.3d 185 (2014). Additionally, the Presumption in Favor of Relocation requires that the trial court consider the interests of not only the child, but the relocating party when considering each of the 11 child relocation factors. (26.09.520).

and *In re Marriage of Horner*, 151 Wn.2d 884, 93 P. 3d 124, (2004). The record is devoid of the trial court considering the best interests of the relocating party on all 11 Factors.

- 2. RCW 26.09.530 (Factor not to be considered). The Appellate upheld the Trial Courts decision to restrict the mother from relocating with or without the child. Claimed Error #11 and 25 in Appellate's Brief. The Appellate Court upheld the ruling of the trial court determining that the mother should forego her own relocation before denying the relocation in direct conflict with the Legislative intent of RCW 26.09.530, and by violating the mother's constitutional rights to travel. The court specifically found that the only alternative to relocation was that the mother be restricted from moving without the child. The trial court ordered mother to "continue to commute" (RP 244) when ruling on relocation Factor 9 (RCW 26.09.520(9).
- 3. Appellate Court neglected to address Assigned Error #13 in Appellants Brief. The trial court stated on record that it had the

discretion to weigh the relocation factors in conflict with RCW 26.09.520.

- 4. The trial court made the decision to modify the parenting plan before denying the relocation in conflict with the Legislative intent outlined in RCW 26.09.260(6) and *In re Marriage of Horner*, 151 Wn.2d 884, 93 P. 3d 124, (2004).
- 5. The Appellate Court upheld the trial courts Adequate Cause ruling, in direct conflict with The Supreme Court Decision of *In re Marriage of Grigsby* 112 Wn.App. 1, 7-8, 57 P. 3d 1166 (2002).

C. Statement of the Case

Angela Schreiner petitions the Supreme Court of the State of Washington for review of the decision issued on Oct. 25th, 2015 by Court of Appeals Division II (48027-1-II). A trial court's decision regarding the relocation of children is reviewed for a manifest abuse of discretion. Horner, 151 Wash.2d at 893, 93 P.3d 124; Bay, 147 Wash. App. at 651, 196 P.3d 753. A trial court manifestly abuses its discretion when our review of the record shows that its decision is

based on untenable grounds or untenable reasons. In re Marriage of Littlefield, 133 Wash.2d 39, 46-47, 940 P.2d 1362 (1997). A court's decision is manifestly unreasonable if it is outside the range of acceptable choices, given the facts and the **applicable legal standard**; it is based on untenable grounds if the factual findings are unsupported by the record; it is based on untenable reasons if it is based on an **incorrect standard** or the facts do not meet the requirements of the correct standard. State v. Rundquist, 79 Wash.App. 786, 793, 905 P.2d 922 (1995) (citing Washington State Bar Ass'n, Washington Appellate Practice Deskbook § 18.5 (2d ed.1993)), review denied, 129 Wash.2d 1003, 914 P.2d 66 (1996).

Argument

1. PRESUMPTION

The Appellate Court, Division I upholds in *Marriage* of *McNaught*, No. 72343-0-1, 2015 Wash. App. **LEXIS** 1938 (Aug. 17, 2015), and *In Re Marriage* of *Rostrom*, 184 Wn. App. 744, 339 P.3d 185 (2014) that The Child Relocation Act does not apply a "best

interest of the child" standard; instead, it applies 11 specific factors for the court to consider. [NOTE: The recent decisions of These cases implicitly overrule the prior relocation decisions of In re Parentage of R.F.R., 122 Wn. App. 324, 328, 93 P.3d 951 (2004) and In re Marriage of Grigsby, 112 Wn. App. 1, 7, 57 P.3d 1166 (2002), which stated in dieta "The Relocation Act of 2000...gives courts the authority to allow or disallow relocation based on the best interests of the child." (Grigsby) In re Marriage of Momb, 132 Wn. App. 70, 79, 130 P.3d 406 (2006); In re Marriage of Horner, 151 Wn.2d 884, 895, 93 P.3d 124 (2004). The relocation statute applies where the primary residential parent seeks to move with the child. RCW 26.09.430, there is a presumption in favor of relocation. Horner, 151 Wn.2d at 887. As this Court recently reiterated, "the presumption in favor of relocation operates to give particular importance to the interests and circumstances of the relocating parent, not only the best interests of the child." Marriage of McNaught, No. 72343-0-1,2015 Wash. App. LEXIS 1938, at *9 (Aug. 17, 2015) (emphasis added) (quoting Horner, 151 Wn.2d at 887). As this Court noted in *McNaught*, the 11 relocation factors "provide a balancing test between the competing interests and circumstances that exist when a parent wishes to relocate." *McNaught*, at * 10 (emphasis added). Indeed, the factors weigh the benefit the move holds for the relocating parent and the child, "focus[ing] on both the child and the relocating person." *Id.* at *7(quoting *Horner*, 151 Wn.2d at 887). Factors 7, 9, and 10 in particular "focus on the family and its material needs," while factor 5 "considers the reasons of the relocating and objecting parties." *Horner*, 151 Wn.2d at 894 n.9.

When ruling on Factor 5 the court stated: "So I don't see, on balance, how that is to Memphis' best interest." (Court's Oral Ruling, RP 434).

FACTORS 7, 9, 10 and 5 require that the trial court apply the presumption in favor of relocation and consider the benefit the move holds for the relocating party. *Horner*, 151 Wn.2d at 894 n.9.

The Appellate court in this case upheld the Trial court's decision to not issue a specific finding on Factor 2.3.10. This factor requires the trial court apply the Presumption in Favor of relocation. *Horner*, 151 Wn.2d at 894 n.9.

10) The financial impact and logistics of the relocation or its prevention.

The Appellate Court improperly affirms the trial court stating "Because the location is 40 to 60 minutes away the financial impact would likely be minimal, which would explain the lack of evidence regarding this factor." (Pg. 15, 48027-1-II).

The Appellate Court's Opinion that the location of the relocation excuses the trial court from issuing a specific finding on this Factor is improper. The CRA requires specific findings on each of the 11 relocation Factors(RCW 26.09.520) and *In re Marriage of Horner*, 151 Wn.2d 884, 93 P. 3d 124, (2004).

Because the trial court did not make an express finding on this factor, the basis for it's decision is unclear. The Order on Objection

states: "The court finds that very little evidence was presented regarding the financial impact of the relocation or it's prevention" (CP 242-245). Additionally, the record shows that there was substantial evidence in the record to make a finding on this Factor. In fact, employment and logistics were specifically listed as the two main reasons in the Notice of Intended Relocation (EX 1). Specific testimony was given on how the commute would negatively impact both herself and the child. (Schreiner, A. –Direct by Ms. Hosannah, VRP 20). (Schreiner, A.-Cross by Mr. Miller, VRP 47).

Finding of Fact 2.3.3

(3) Whether disrupting the contact between the child and the person with whom the child resides a majority of the time would be more detrimental to the child than disrupting contact between the child and the person objecting to the relocation;

The trial court did not reach a conclusion on this factor, failing to apply the Presumption in Favor of Relocation and opting only to consider third parties. Without express findings regarding whether

disruption of contact with the father or the mother would be more detrimental to the child, the trial court's basis is unclear.

The Appellate Court cited the Courts Finding on Factor 1 to justify the lack of findings on Factor 3. The Appellate Court stated "The trial court found M.S.'s "relationship with her father and extended family who all reside in Pierce County would in fact be disrupted by mother's relocating the child to Mercer Island." CP at 243. The trial court further found "the disruption in contact would be detrimental to [M.S.]." Id."(Pg. 11). The trial court **did not make** these findings on Factor 3, and did not reach a conclusion or make an expressing finding whether disrupting contact with dad or mom would be more detrimental to the child on Factor 3. The trial court must make express finding on EACH FACTOR.

RCW 26.09.520(5) Finding of Fact 2.3.5

The reasons of each person for seeking or opposing the relocation and the good faith of <u>each of the parties</u> in requesting or opposing the relocation;

The trial court did not make an express finding of the good faith of Mr. Scoutten. Here again, the trial court applied the wrong legal standard and referred to "a best interest of the child" standard instead of the presumption in favor of relocation.

THE COURT stated: "Weekly visits with Dad in Pierce County versus three or so medical appointments a month are going to mean more time on the freeway for visits with Dad than medical appointments. So I don't see, on balance, how that is to Memphis' best interest" (RP 434).

No. 9) The trial court erred on Finding of Fact 2.3.7

The quality of life, resources, and opportunities available to the child and to the relocating party in the current and proposed geographic locations.

Instead of using the Presumption in favor of relocation and considering the cost the mother incurred commuting to work 2 hours per day, the trial court actually imposed a financial penalty upon mom and ordered her to continue to commute to work as an

alternative to relocation. There was substantial evidence to support the negative logistical and financial impact the commute to the mother's workplace and Seattle Children's Hospital had(EX 1).

The trial court erred on Finding of Fact 2.3.8

(8) The availability of alternative arrangements to foster and continue the child's relationship with and access to the other parent;

The ORDYMT or ORGRRE states: "This Court finds no evidence of any feasible alternative arrangements to foster and continue the child's relationship with the father and extended family if allowed to relocate" (CP 242-245).

Without express findings of alternative arrangements, the trial Courts basis is unclear. There is substantial evidence provided to support alternative arrangements to foster and continue the child's relationship with and access to the other parent. The intended relocation did not propose a change to the parenting plan (EX 1).

Finding of Fact 2.3.9

(9) The alternatives to relocation and whether it is feasible and desirable for the other party to relocate also;

THE COURT: So it seems to me like the alternative, in this particular case, to relocation is that Ms. Schreiner continues to commute (RP 439).

"I didn't hear any evidence of any other alternatives to relocation, and I certainly didn't hear anything from Mr. Scoutten that would indicate it was feasible for him to also relocate. Then how one determines that that weighs in favor of or against relocation is really more a personal choice than something that the Court can analyze and weigh...although I'm always in favor of putting the **burden on** the parents and not on the children, so --" (RP 439).

If the trial court would have applied The Presumption in Favor of relocation, it would not put have put the burden on the relocating party and order mom to commute, it would consider the benefits of the relocation to the relocating party and the child and the benefit of not having to commute to work 2 hours per day and be on the freeway for "three or so medical appointments per month." (RP

435). Moreover, the trial court did not consider it an alternative that Mr. Scoutten could have relocated. It was a possibility, as the Appellate Court stated on Factor 10 "It was only 40-60 minutes away" The Appellate Court found that commuting to work wouldn't have had any logistical or financial impact (48027-1-II, Pg. 15).

The trial court erred by not considering Finding of Fact 2.3.11.

(11) For a temporary order, the amount of time before a final decision can be made at trial.

The trial court did not make a specific finding on this factor. Mr. Scoutten failed to file a hearing to restrict mother from moving within 15 days or note a hearing to provide adequate cause for relief under RCW 26.09.480.

Conclusion at trial

Courts interpret statutory presumptions to give them the force intended by the legislature. The significant yet surmountable hurdle the legislature established for the opposing party supports the view that the presumption does not disappear upon a party's production of evidence. If it disappeared as suggested, the presumption would

do little to further the legislature's apparent purpose of generally favoring relocation. As we apply the presumption, it provides the standard the trial court uses <u>at the conclusion of trial</u> to resolve competing claims about relocation. This approach furthers the legislature's policy reflected in the presumption. Larson, 2015 WL 4204116, at * 7. Horner, 151 Wn.2d at 894. The trial court applied the "best interest standard instead of the Presumption in favor of relocation to the factors, therefore the trial court failed to apply the presumption at the conclusion of trial.

2 .RCW 26.09.530 Factor not to be considered, Constitutional violation.

"In determining whether to permit or restrain the relocation of the child, the court may not admit evidence on the issue of whether the person seeking to relocate the child will forego his or her own relocation if the child's relocation is not permitted or whether the person opposing relocation will also relocate if the child's relocation is permitted. The court may admit and consider such evidence after it makes the decision to allow or restrain relocation of the

child and other parenting, custody, or visitation issues remain before the court, such as what, if any, modifications to the parenting plan are appropriate and who the child will reside with the majority of the time if the court has denied relocation of the child and the person is relocating without the child" (RCW 26.09.530).

The Appellate court upheld the trial court's ruling that "the only alternative to the relocation is that the mother continues to commute." (CP at 244), (RP 439).