93873-3

NO. 48027-1-II

### RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON CLERK'S OFFICE

Jan 06, 2017, 2:00 pm

## RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY

# RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEW WASHINGTON SUPREME COURT

## ON APPEAL FROM COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

ANGELA K. SCOUTTEN NKA SCHREINER,

Appellant,

٧.

MICHAEL J. SCOUTTEN,

Respondent

john@johnmillerlegal.com Attorney for Respondent 1019 Regents Blvd. Suite 204 Fircrest, WA 98466 253-564-5054

## **

#### A. Statement of the Issue

1. A Petition for Review can only be granted if the Court ruled in conflict with an Appellate or Supreme Court case. The Court correctly followed the law and the record supports the ruling. Should this Court deny the Petition for Review because there is no basis to grant it?

#### **B.** Introduction

This is a case involving two actions, brought on behalf of two parties, with two filing fees: (1) a Relocation Action brought by Angie, and (2) a Petition to Modify the Parenting Plan brought by Mike. The Court was impartial and fair, followed the proper procedure and law for both actions, and made findings that are supported by the record.

This is not the case where after the Court's denial of Angie's relocation, and her subsequent withdrawal of her intent to relocate, the Court acted without authority and arbitrarily entered a modified Parenting Plan. This is a case where Mike filed a Petition to Modify, which gave the Court authority to modify the parenting plan regardless of whether Angie would later withdraw her relocation. After a relocation and modification trial, and receiving supplement briefing from both Counsel addressing the detrimental effect of Memphis' present environment, the Court found a substantial change occurred since the entry of the 2013 Parenting Plan and modification was in Memphis' best interest.

The Appellate Court properly affirmed the trial Court's (1) denial of the relocation, and (2) the modification of the parenting plan because both decisions were discretionary, the Court followed the proper procedure and law for both decisions, and substantial evidence supports the findings for both decisions.

#### C. Statement of the Facts

Incorporated from Mr. Scoutten's Appellate Brief.

#### D. Argument

## I. There is No Basis for A Petition for Review to Be Granted.

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

- If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- 2. If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or RAP 13.4(b)(1)-(4).

Because Ms. Schreiner has not advanced any arguments that would bring 13.4(b)(1)-(4) under view, this Court should not grant acceptance of review. However, if the Court finds Ms. Schreiner's arguments do fall under section (1) or (2), any argument advanced is not supported by her brief or the record. The trial Court did not err

<sup>1.</sup> If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or

<sup>2.</sup> If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b)(1)-(4).

in applying the statutory presumption, correctly applied the required ten (10) statutory factors, substantial evidence supports the Court's decision, and the Court followed all established, controlling law.

II. The Trial Court Had Authority to Modify the Parenting Plan Because Mike Filed a Petition to Modify, Established a Substantial Change Occurred, and Modification was in Memphis' Best Interest

Angie's argument that the "trial Court was already making the decision to modify the parenting plan before it made a decision to grant or restrict relocation..." Petition for Review, 22, is wrong. Even though the Court ruled against the Relocation and Angie stated she would not relocate, the Modification was proper because Mike filed a Petition to Modify, paid a filing fee for the separate action, there was a Modification trial with no objections, and the Court requested additional briefing prior to ruling.

The Court of Appeals "may refuse to review any claim of error which was not raised in the trial Court." RAP 2.5(a). There were no objections at trial to moving forward with Mike's petition to Modify the Parenting Plan after the Relocation trial. Every right was afforded to Angie to respond, call witnesses, cross-examine witnesses, and put forward additional briefing at trial. Angie should not be permitted to raise this issue for the first time on appeal.

This case is controlled first by the Relocation statute and second by the Modification statute, and does not fall squarely under *Grigsby* because Mike filed a petition to Modify the 2013 Parenting Plan. There does not appear to be any case law directly on point with the procedural posture of this case where a modification outside of the relocation was filed at the same time of the relocation.<sup>2</sup> Even so, there were two issues, no objections, two trials, supplemental briefing, and two rulings.

RCW 26.09.260(6) governs a request for modification made as part of an objection to a petition for relocation. In a relocation case, it is not necessary for the court to consider whether there is a substantial change in circumstances other than the relocation itself, to consider the factors contained in RCW 26.09.260(2). Under the relocation statute, the objecting party can petition to change the residence the child resides a majority of the time without a showing of adequate cause. This statute does not control the outcome of the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Dicta in a footnote from a Division three case, *In Re Marriage of McDevitt*, 181 Wn. App. 765, 772, 326 P.3d 865 (2014) touches on the less than clear statutory restrictions on the proper procedure for what happens after a relocation is denied, a parent withdraws their relocation request, and modification under the best interests of the child has been explored. That FN though is not directly on point either as this Court went through a best interest of Memphis analysis because Mike filed for a Modification.

case once the relocation is off the table because Mike filed a petition to modify and paid the filing fee.

Instead, RCW 26.09.260(1) governs Mike's petition to modify. In order for the Court to have authority to modify the parenting plan after Angie withdrew her intended relocation, the Court had to find (1) based off facts that have arisen since the 2013 parenting plan was entered that (2) a substantial change has occurred in regards to Memphis or Angie, and that (3) modification it is in the best interest of Memphis, and necessary to serve her best interests. RCW 26.09.260(1).

In determining whether modification is in the best interest of Memphis, the Court could not change the PP unless it found (1) Memphis' present environment is detrimental to the her physical, mental, or emotional health and (2) the harm likely to be caused by a change of environment is outweighed by the advantage of the change to the her. RCW 26.09.260(1)(c). The Court did exactly what it was required to do under the law. The Court found modification was in Memphis' best interest based on the instability that was apparent and harming Memphis since the entry of the 2013 PP.

In *In re Marriage of Grigsby*, 112 Wn. App 1, 57 P.3d 1166 (2002), the Trial Court denied the Relocation after finding that the detrimental effect of the relocation outweighed any benefit. The mother withdrew her request to relocate, but the Trial Court modified the Parenting Plan to make the father the primary parent. The COA affirmed the Relocation because the FF were supported by substantial evidence, but reversed the modification fo the PP because the Court did not have authority to modify the PP to make the father the primary parent once the mother withdrew the request to relocate. *Id.* 1. The Court found that once the mother was no longer pursuing the relocation, there was no substantial change in circumstances and none of the factors contained in RCW 26.09.260(2) were present. *Id.* 

Our case is distinguishable from *Grigsby* factually and procedurally. First, Mike filed a Petition to Modify the PP and paid the fee, whereas the father in *Grigsby* did not. Second, in our case, there was a Modification trial and a Relocation trial; there was only a Relocation trial in *Grigsby*. Third, because there was a Modification trial, the Court made its decision to modify the PP because there were RCW 26.09.260(2) factors present. Fourth, after the Court ruled denying the relocation, the mother withdrew her relocation, and

the Court did not alter the PP, leaving it to the parties to bring another Motion if it wanted to modify the PP.

In *Grisby*, two months after the relocation ruling, the parties came before the Court for a hearing (unknown who initiated, FN 3) and the Court modified the PP. *Id.* 5. The Court made the father the primary parent, but kept everything else the same, reasoning that it was protecting the children from any proposed relocation in the future. Our case is different because there was a modification trial, not just a relocation trial, the Court made findings for each trial, supported by substantial evidence, and the Court did not just change the primary parent to protect Memphis from a proposed relocation in the future, like the Court did in *Grigsby*; it made Mike the primary parent because Memphis was being harmed by actions that arose since the 2013 PP was entered and it was in her best interest to live with Mike, not Angie.

After Reversing the Modification of the PP, the *Grigsby* Court addressed the procedural difference from that case and ours by noting the father was free to seek modification of the PP under RCW 26.09.260(2), should he be able to establish that there was a substantial change in circumstances and that the modification was necessary to serve the best interests of the child. *Id.* 26-27.

Here, the trial Court did not modify the Parenting Plan under 26.09.520(6), it modified the Parenting Plan under RCW 26.09.260(1),(2)(c). Had the Court modified the PP under the relocation statute after Angie withdrew her relocation request, the Court *may* have erred, but the Court had authority under .260 to modify after it found, based on facts that had arisen since 2013, which involved the inability to co-parent, unilateral decision making, deceptive behavior, withholding communication — all of which were detrimental to Memphis' well being.

While Angle is correct that there was not a technical adequate cause hearing,<sup>3</sup> this is only a result of the unique procedural posture of the case and should not constitute a reversible error.<sup>4</sup> In addition, this issue was not addressed at trial and should be barred for review by RAP 2.5(a). Before a modification can be set for a hearing, adequate cause must be established; this requires an affidavit

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> No facts outside of the record should be considered on this appeal. Any argument or reference to anything occurring before (or after) the trial that was not testified to or after July 24, 2015, when the Final Agreed Orders were entered should be stricken and not considered, including inaccurate designation of Clerk's Papers, and any subsequent history of this case. If this Court finds an issue that was not addressed in Angie's brief, but that has merit, it should allow the parties to provide supplement briefing.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> If this case were solely based off just the modification statute, a hearing for adequate cause would be required before the case was set for trial. RCW 26.09.270, *Zigler* at 809. These parties were already in trial. A ruling had already been made on the relocation.

setting forth facts that arose since the entry of the last PP. *Zigler* at 809. In addressing the modification statute after the Relocation trial, the Court requested supplemental briefing before it made its ruling. The supplemental briefing goes beyond what is required to be found to pass the adequate cause hurdle required outside of the relocation statute. It could not have been the legislature's intent in this scenario where a Modification was filed and a Modification trial was in full swing to have the Court end proceedings as soon as Angie notified the Court she would not relocate without first having an adequate cause hearing. At the least, judicial economy required the case to continue and there was no harm or prejudice in continuing.

The Court did not abuse its discretion in modifying the parenting plan, it had authority to modify the PP, it made appropriate findings based off substantial evidence, and the Appellate Court properly affirmed the modification.

#### E. Conclusion

The trial Court properly considered all relevant factors in making its decision to deny Angie's relocation, which is supported by substantial evidence in the record. Further, the Court found that even if the trial Court didn't explicitly detail every possible reason it relied

on it making its decision, there was substantial evidence in the record to support the Court's relocation findings.

The Court also had authority to modify the parenting plan even after Angie withdrew her intent to relocation because Mike filed a petition to modify, there was a modification trial, and supplemental briefing. The Court appropriately made a discretionary decision after finding a substantial change in circumstances had arisen since the May 2013 Parenting Plan and properly considered the factors under the Modification statute – 26.09.260(2). The Court found that the modification was in five-year-old Memphis' best interest because her environment was detrimental to her well-being. The Court affirmed the denial of the Relocation and affirm the Modification of the Parenting Plan, which kept Memphis where she has been living with Mike and Monica since July 2015.

The trial Court correctly applied the presumption and addressed each statutory factor, which was supported by substantial evidence. After addressing the relocation requirements, the Court moved to the modification requirements, correctly finding that a substantial change had occurred and the change was detrimental to the child. This Court should not grant Angie's Petition for Review

because there is no basis to grant it and alternatively, the Court did not err in making its ruling.